



8th FINA World Junior Swimming Championships 2022



30 August – 4 September 2022 LIMA, PERU

SUMMONS

30 August – 4 September 2022 LIMA, PERU

http://fdpn.org







Contents

I. GENERAL	INFORMATION
------------	-------------

1.	HOST, PLACE AND DATE OF COMPETITIONS	3
2.	ORGANISING COMMITTEE	2
II. C	HAMPIONSHIPS INFORMATION	
1.	COMPETITION & TRAINING VENUE	
2.	PROGRAMME OF THE CHAMPIONSHIPS	6
3.	AWARDS	7
4.	RULES	
5.	SUBSTITUTION, WITHDRAWAL AND PROTEST	
5	5.1 Substitution (GR 7)	.
5	5.2 Withdrawal (GR 7)	
5	5.3 Protests (GR 9.2)	8
6.	SWIMWEAR AND ADVERSTISING	8
7.	DOPING CONTROL	9
8.	CONTROL OF EVENTS	9
8	3.1 Management Committee (GR 9.4)	
8	3.2 Jury of Appeal (GR 9.3)	9
III. T	FEAM INFORMATION	
1.	REGISTRATION, NOTIFICATION AND ENTRIES	10
2.	QUALIFICATION AND ENTRIES OF COMPETITIORS	11
2	2.1 Entry Regulations	11
2	2.2 Age Group	1
2	2.3 Qualification Period	1
3.	ATHLETE ELIGIBILITY AND QUOTA	11
3	3.1 Eligibility	11
3	3.2 Quota (BL 9.3.6.9)	11
4.	TEAM OFFICIALS	12
5.	ACCREDITATION	
6.	-	13
•.	TRAVEL TO LIMA	
7.		16
	TRAVEL TO LIMA	16
7.	TRAVEL TO LIMA	16
7. 8. 9.	TRAVEL TO LIMA	16 19 19
7. 8. 9.	TRAVEL TO LIMA. VISA. FINA FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION. ACCOMMODATION. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION.	





I. GENERAL INFORMATION

The "Federation Internationale de Natation" (FINA) hereby notifies and invites all affiliated National Federations (NFs) to participate in the **8th FINA WORLD JUNIOR SWIMMING CHAMPIONSHIPS 2022** on the following basis:

1. HOST, PLACE AND DATE OF COMPETITIONS

The hosts for these Championships, the City of Lima and the Federación Deportiva Peruana de Natación (FDPN), have established an Organising Committee, which shall be in charge of the preparation and organization of the competitions under the control and supervision of FINA.

The events will be held in Lima (PER) on the following schedule:

Tuesday, 30 August 2022 Opening Ceremony

Tuesday, 30 – Sunday, 4 September 2022 Competition

Sunday, 4 September 2022 Closing Ceremony

Overview of Lima

Lima is the largest city and capital of Peru. With more than 10 million inhabitants in its metropolitan area, it is the most populous city in the country and ranks fifth among the most populous cities in Latin America. Currently, it is considered the political, cultural, financial and commercial center of Peru.

Lima has been named Gastronomic Capital of Latin America for the excellent quality and passion of Peruvian chefs.





I. GENERAL INFORMATION

2. ORGANISING COMMITTEE

National Federations (NFs) should communicate with the the **Organising Committee of the 8**th **FINA World Junior Swimming Championships 2022 Lima** through:

- Postal Address:
 Jr. Nazca cuadra 6 s/n, Jesús María Lima
- E-mail: sport@fdpn.org
- Website: http://fdpn.org (Official event website will be open in due course)

Members of the Management Team of Lima 2022 OC

Name	Function	E-mail
Augusto Del Águila	LOC President	lima2022@fdpn.org
Nikola Ustavdich	President – Peruvian Swimming Federation	-
Bruno Semino	Sport Manager	sport@fdpn.org
Mirtha Vicuña	Protocol and ceremony	-
Martha Camino	Delegations Services	-
Edwing Suni	Look of the Championships and Sport Equipment	-
Silvia Llerena	FINA General Management System (FINA GMS)	gms@fdpn.org
Luz Arroyo	Accommodation, Local Transportation and Visas	visas@fdpn.org // accommodation@fdpn.org





CHAMPIONSHIPS INFORMATION 11.

1. **COMPETITION & TRAINING VENUE**

FÉDÉRATION

The venue for the competition is the VIDENA Aquatic Center, located at Av. Canada door 10, district of San Luis. This venue hosted the XVIII Pan American and Parapan American Games Lima 2019, the Lima 2021 South American Youth Aquatic Sports Championship and the FINA Water Polo World League Intercontinental Cup 2022. It also has a training pool with 10 lanes by 50m within the facility.



Competition Venue - VIDENA Aquatic Center



Training Venue - VIDENA Aquatic Center

2. PROGRAMME OF THE CHAMPIONSHIPS

MEN & WOMEN								
	50m	100m	200m	400m	800m	1500m	4x100m	4x200m
Freestyle	•	•	•	•	•	•		
Backstroke	•	•	•					
Breaststroke	•	•	•					
Butterfly	•	•	•					
Individual Medley			•	•				
Freestyle Relay							•	•
Medley Relay							•	
Mixed Freestyle Relay							•	
Mixed Medley Relay							•	

Competition Schedule (Link)

The Championships will be staged over six (6) days with preliminary heats in the morning sessions and the semi-finals and finals in the evening session.

Ten (10) lanes of the competition pool will be used for the morning heats, if necessary, while semi-finals and finals will be swum using eight (8) lanes.

All morning sessions will start at **09:30**, and evening sessions will start at **18:00 local time (GMT -5)**. The session start times may be subject to minor changes.





3. AWARDS

Awards are distributed as per FINA Rules BL 9.13.

Medals – Gold, Silver, and Bronze: Medals are awarded to the first three in individual and team events. In relays, medals will be awarded to those swimmers who have participated in the heats and the final.

In case of equal times, medals shall be awarded as follows

1st place: 2 gold – no silver, 1 bronze 2nd place: 1 gold, 2 silver – no bronze 3rd place: 1 gold, 1 silver, 2 bronze

In case of 3 equal times medals shall be awarded as follows:

1st place: 3 gold, no silver – no bronze 2nd place: 1 gold, 3 silver – no bronze 3rd place: 1 gold, 1 silver, 3 bronze

4. RULES

The Championships will be held under $\underline{\sf FINA\ Rules}$ in force at the time of the Championships.

5. SUBSTITUTION, WITHDRAWAL AND PROTEST

5.1 Substitution (GR 7)

Any entered competitor may be substituted by another entered competitor at the Team Leaders Meeting. It is mandatory for one representative of each Federation to take part in the Team Leaders Meeting. Failing to do so will result in a fine of one-hundred (100) Swiss Francs.

5.2 Withdrawal (GR 7)

In all competitions except water polo, a competitor or team not wishing to take part in a semi-final or final in which qualification was earned shall withdraw within thirty (30) minutes following the preliminaries or the semi-finals of the event in which the qualification took place. The member federation of any competitor who withdraws from the heats/preliminary rounds after the Team Leaders Meeting or from a semi-final or final more than thirty (30) minutes after the preliminaries or semi-finals of the event in which qualification was earned, shall pay without excuse to the Honorary Treasurer the sum of one-hundred (100) Swiss francs; in case of a relay, duet, team or combination, the sum shall be two-hundred (200) Swiss francs.





5.3 Protests (GR 9.2)

Protests are possible:

- (a) if the rules and regulations for the conduct of the competition are not observed,
- (b) if other conditions endanger the competitions and/or competitors, or
- (c) against decisions of the referee; however, no protest shall be allowed against decisions of fact.

Protest must be submitted:

- (a) to the referee,
- (b) in writing on FINA Forms,
- (c) by the responsible team leader,
- (d) together with a deposit of five hundred (500) Swiss Francs or its equivalent, and
- (e) within 30 minutes following the conclusion of the respective event or match.
- If conditions causing a potential protest are noted prior to the event a protest must be lodged before the signal to start is given.

6. SWIMWEAR AND ADVERSTISING

All competitors of the Championships shall abide by the relevant FINA Rules and regulations pertaining to swimwear and advertising.

- GR 5 SWIMWEAR
- GR 6 ADVERTISING
- BL 7 ADVRTISING AT FINA WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS AND FINA COMPETITIONS
- BL 8 SWIMWEAR





7. DOPING CONTROL

The doping control will be coordinated by International Testing Agency (ITA) during the FINA World Junior Championships.

World Records and World Junior Records

As per <u>DC 5.3.3.1</u>, any Athlete equalling or breaking a World Record in Swimming, as defined in the FINA Swimming Rules, shall be tested immediately after the race, or at the latest, 24 hours after the race.

Continental or National Record

Should an Athlete equal or break a continental or a national record during the FINA World Championships and not otherwise be selected for Testing, the Member Federation may request ITA / FINA to conduct Testing on such Athlete upon payment of a fee reasonably determined by ITA/FINA.

8. CONTROL OF EVENTS

8.1 Management Committee (GR 9.4)

The Management Committee shall be appointed by the FINA Executive.

8.2 Jury of Appeal (<u>GR 9.3</u>)

The Jury of Appeal shall be the FINA delegate together with any Bureau Members or members of the appropriate Technical Committee present, with the delegate as chairman.







1. REGISTRATION, NOTIFICATION AND ENTRIES

There will be two (2) successive entry steps to provide information to FINA and the Organising Committee (OC) in order to register for the 8th FINA World Junior Swimming Championships. All the communication between the OC and National Federations will be confirmed by email. All Registrations and Entries shall take place through the **FINA General Management System** (FINA GMS) which can be accessed by https://data.fina.org.

Please note that the registration for the 8th FINA World Junior Swimming Championships Lima 2022 is to be opened on **1 June 2022**.

THE ENTRY STEPS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

i. PRELIMINARY ENTRIES

To be submitted through the FINA GMS by 21 June 2022 at 23:59 (GMT).

The Preliminary Entry is for the purpose of confirming the participation of the National Federation and indicating to the OC the maximum number of competitors, Team Officials and NF Representatives which each NF intends to register.

ii. FINAL NOMINATIONS AND SPORT ENTRIES TO BE SUBMITTED THROUGH THE FINA GMS BY 19 July 2022 at 23:59 (GMT).

The Final Nominations is the final deadline to register all Athletes, Team Officials and NF Representatives, that includes all relevant data for the purposes of Accreditation, Visa free entry, travel details and accommodation.

All athletes should also have their sport entries completed by this deadline. Athletes with no sport entries completed by this date will be considered as withdrawn and their registration will be cancelled.

AFTER THIS DEADLINE IT WILL NOT BE POSSIBLE TO REGISTER ANY MORE INDIVIDUALS TO THE EVENT.

THE NUMBER OF REGISTRATIONS MUST NOT EXCEED THE NUMBERS SUBMITTED IN THE PRELIMINARY ENTRY.

The data must contain the exact number of named competitors, representatives, coaches, official delegates, etc. All requested information must be fully and correctly completed in the FINA GMS. By this date, the NF must also have completed the final room requests (exact number of rooms, dates, etc.) and provide the OC with the complete rooming list in the FINA GMS.





2. QUALIFICATION AND ENTRIES OF COMPETITIORS

2.1 Entry Regulations

All FINA affiliated federations are eligible to participate in the 8th FINA World Junior Swimming Championships 2022 – Lima (PER).

Each federation may enter up to two (2) swimmers per event, and one (1) relay team.

2.2 Age Group

- Girls: 14 17 years on 31 December 2022 (born 2008, 2007, 2006, & 2005)
- Boys: 15 18 years on 31 December 2022 (born 2007, 2006, 2005, & 2004)

2.3 Qualification Period

Entry times will only be accepted if they have been achieved within the qualifying period of <u>1 January 2021 – 17 July 2022</u>. All times achieved outside this qualifying period will not be accepted.

3. ATHLETE ELIGIBILITY AND QUOTA

3.1 Eligibility

A competitor must be a citizen by birth or naturalisation of the nation he/she represents (FINA General Rules GR 2.5).

The passport from the nation that the athlete represents will be requested for the registration procedure. Additional documents will also be requested in specific cases according to GR 2.5.

Any competitor changing his affiliation from one national governing body to another must comply with FINA General Rules GR 2.6 and contact FINA to complete the procedure.

3.2 Quota (<u>BL 9.3.6.9</u>)

Category		Maximum athlete quota
Competitors	Men	26
	Women	26





8th FINA

Championships

III. TEAM INFORMATION

4. **TEAM OFFICIALS**

Individuals who are serving as Team Officials (Chef de Mission, coaches, managers, doctors, etc.) cannot serve as Technical Meet Officials.

Each NF shall be allowed to include in its delegation, individuals registered under the category of "Team Officials" (coaches, managers, trainers, chaperons, etc.) in each discipline. The number of Team Officials is determined by the number of competitors entering and participating, as shown below:

	No. of Competitors	Maximum Number of Team Official
	1-2 competitors	2
	3-4 competitors	4
	5-8 competitors	6
Team Officials	9-13 competitors	10
Team Officials	14-20competitors	14
	21-30 competitors	20
	31-40 competitors	25
	Over 40 competitors	30

5. ACCREDITATION

NF's are to note the number of Team Officials allowed, as detailed in <u>Section 4</u>. A fee of USD 150.- will be charged for approved additional accreditation passes for individuals registered under the "Team Official" category that exceed the Team Official quota.

Concerning NF Representatives officially recognized by FINA, the President and the General Secretary will be entitled to free accreditation. (This cannot be transferred to any other person).

Any other individual registered under the NF Representative category will be charged a fee of USD 150.- for their accreditation. NF Representatives are NOT included in Team Official quotas.

FINA has final approval for all additional Team Official and NF Representative Accreditation pass requests that have been registered through the FINA GMS by the registration deadline of 19 July 2022.

The following access privileges will be given to the persons depending on their function:

ZONE – CODE	ZONE DESCRIPTION	ZONE ACCESS	
BLUE	Field of play	Blue, Red, White	
RED	Operational areas	Red, White	
WHITE	General circulation areas	White	
2	Athlete preparation areas	2	
4	Media areas	4	
5	Broadcast areas	5	
6	FINA Family areas 6		
7	VIP area	7	
Т	Team Tribune	Т	
G	Guest Tribune	G	
TA	Transport Team Shuttle Bus	Bus TA	





CATEGORY	FUNCTION	PRIVILEGES	SEATING	TRANSPORT
Athlete		Blue, 2	Т	TA
	President	Blue, 2	G	TA
	General Secretary	Blue, 2	G	TA
	Executive Board Member	Red, 2	G	TA
NF	Official Representative	Red, 2	G	TA
Representative	Senior Staff	Red, 2	G	TA
	Accompanying Guest	Red, 2	G	TA
	DV, HD, OW, SW, AS, WP President	Blue, 2	G	TA
	DV, HD, OW, SW, AS, WP General Secretary	Blue, 2	G	TA
	Chef de Mission	Blue, 2	Т	TA
	Head Coach	Blue, 2	Т	TA
	Coach	Blue, 2	Т	TA
	Team Leader	Blue, 2	Т	TA
Team Official	Doctor	Blue, 2	Т	TA
Team Oniciai	Massage Therapist	Blue, 2	Т	TA
	Media Liaison	Blue, 2, 4, 5	Т	TA
	Medical Personnel	Blue, 2	Т	TA
	Physiotherapist	Blue, 2	Т	TA
	Support Staff	Blue, 2	Т	TA

Venue Access:

Athletes will have access to all training venues and the competition venue where they are competing.

Team Officials and NF Representatives

Individuals registered in these categories will have access to all competition and training venues.

The NF is entirely responsible for registering the participants with their correct functions and roles, so that the correct accreditations will be issued. No accreditations will be changed or re-printed during the event.

Loss of Accreditation Badge:

If your accreditation badge is lost, it must be reported immediately to the nearest security personnel from the Organizing Committee. A penalty fee may be charged for the reproduction of lost accreditation badges.





6. TRAVEL TO LIMA

- Official Airport: "Aeropuerto Internacional Jorge Chávez"
- Address: Av. Elmer Faucett s/n, Callao 07031
- Phone number: (01) 5173501
- Web: https://www.lima-airport.com/esp
- Distance to the official hotels: approximately 35 minutes (15 kilometers)
- Information at the airport: There will be always an information coordinator from the OC for arrivals.

7. VISA

Countries that require visas must contact the OC for the official invitation letter (or document that they require, approved by the OC) for the processing of their respective visa to enter Peru.

The contact from the OC to support the documents is Silvia Llerena by the e-mail visas@fdpn.org.

The countries that require a visa to enter to Peru:

Country	Country Code	Requires Visa (Yes/No)		
Afghanistan	AFG	YES		
Albania	ALB	YES		
Algeria	ALG	YES		
Angola	ANG	YES		
Armenia	ARM	YES		
Azerbaijan	AZE	YES		
Bangladesh	BAN	YES		
Burundi	BDI	YES		
Benin	BEN	YES		
Bhutan	BHU	YES		
Bosnia and Herzegovina	BIH	YES		
Botswana	ВОТ	YES		
Bahrain	BRN	YES		
Burkina Faso	BUR	YES		
Central African Republic	CAF	YES		
Cambodia	CAM	YES		
Congo	CGO	YES		
Chad	CHA	YES		
China	CHN	YES		
Côte d'Ivoire	CIV	YES A		
Cameroon	CMR	YES		



Democratic Republic of the Congo	COD	YES
Comoros	СОМ	YES
Cape Verde	CPV	YES
Cuba	CUB	YES
Djibouti	DJI	YES
Egypt	EGY	YES
Eritrea	ERI	YES
El Salvador	ESA	YES
Ethiopia	ETH	YES
Gabon	GAB	YES
Gambia	GAM	YES
Great Britain	GBR	YES
Guinea-Bissau	GBS	YES
Georgia	GEO	YES
Ecuatorial Guinea	GEQ	YES
Ghana	GHA	YES
Gibraltar	GIB	YES
Haiti	HAI	YES
India	IND	YES
Islamic Republic of Iran	IRI	YES
Iraq	IRQ	YES
Virgin Islands, US	ISV	YES
British Virgin Islands	IVB	YES
Jordan	JOR	YES
Kazakhstan	KAZ	YES
Kenya	KEN	YES
Kyrgyzstan	KGZ	YES
Kosovo Aquatic Sports Federation	KOS	YES
Saudi Arabia	KSA	YES
Kuwait	KUW	YES
Lao People's Democratic Republic	LAO	YES
Libya	LBA	YES
Lebanon	LBN	YES
Liberia	LBR	YES
Lesotho	LES	YES
Sint Maarten	MAA	YES
Macau	MAC YES	
Madagascar	MAD	YES
Morocco	MAR	YES
Malawi	MAW	YES
Maldives	MDV 🖳	YES



Mali MLI YES Mozambique MOZ YES Mauritius MRI YES Mauritania MTN YES Myammar MYA YES Namibia NAM YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nigeria NGR YES Nigeria NGR YES Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Senegal SEN YES Senegal SEN YES Sevehelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Svirian Arab Republic SYR YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES	Mongolia	MGL	YES
Mauritania MRI YES Mauritania MTN YES Myanmar MYA YES Namibia NAM YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nigeria NEP YES Nigeria NIG YES Oman OMA YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Senegal SEN YES Sevehelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Sori Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR </th <th>Mali</th> <th>MLI</th> <th>YES</th>	Mali	MLI	YES
Mauritania MTN YES Myanmar MYA YES Namibia NAM YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nigeria NGR YES Nigeria NIG YES Oman OMA YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Senegal SEN YES Sevehelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sorialia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES	Mozambique	MOZ	YES
Myanmar MYA YES Namibia NAM YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nepal NEP YES Nigeria NGR YES Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Sevchelles SEY YES Serra Leone SLE YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Svaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tanzania TAN YES Togo TOGO YES	Mauritius	MRI	YES
Namibia NAM YES Nicaragua NCA YES Nepal NEP YES Nigeria NGR YES Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Sevephelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Severalian SOM YES Somalia SOM YES Sori Lanka SRI YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Turkmenistan TKM	Mauritania	MTN	YES
Nicaragua NCA YES Nepal NEP YES Nigeria NGR YES Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Siera Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Swziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tanzania TAN YES Tarkmenistan TKM YES <th>Myanmar</th> <th>MYA</th> <th>YES</th>	Myanmar	MYA	YES
Nepal NEP YES Nigeria NGR YES Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Somalia SOM YES Somalia SOM YES Syrian Arabana SRI YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES	Namibia	NAM	YES
Nigeria NGR YES Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Sevchelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tarjikistan TIK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste	Nicaragua	NCA	YES
Niger NIG YES Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Suah YES YES Suah YES Suah <th>Nepal</th> <th>NEP</th> <th>YES</th>	Nepal	NEP	YES
Oman OMA YES Pakistan PAK YES Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Somalia SOM YES Stri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Togo TOG YES Togo TOG YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES	Nigeria	NGR	YES
PakistanPAKYESDemocratic People's Republic of KoreaPRKYESQatarQATYESRwandaRWAYESSenegalSENYESSeychellesSEYYESSierra LeoneSLEYESSomaliaSOMYESSri LankaSRIYESSwaziland(Eswatini)SWZYESSyrian Arab RepublicSYRYESTanzaniaTANYESTurkmenistanTKMYESTurkmenistanTKMYESTurkmenistanTLSYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESVenezuelaVENYESVenezuelaVENYESVenenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Niger	NIG	YES
Democratic People's Republic of Korea PRK YES Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uzanda UGA YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Venen YEM YES Zambia ZAM YES	Oman	OMA	YES
Qatar QAT YES Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Togo TOG YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uzanda UGA YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Zambia ZAM YES	Pakistan	PAK	YES
Rwanda RWA YES Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Somalia SOM YES Stri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Zambia ZAM YES	Democratic People's Republic of Korea	PRK	YES
Senegal SEN YES Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uzanda UGA YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Zambia ZAM YES	Qatar	QAT	YES
Seychelles SEY YES Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Zambia ZAM YES	Rwanda	RWA	YES
Sierra Leone SLE YES Somalia SOM YES Sri Lanka SRI YES Sudan SUD YES Swaziland(Eswatini) SWZ YES Syrian Arab Republic SYR YES Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uganda UGA YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Vambia ZAM YES	Senegal	SEN	YES
SomaliaSOMYESSri LankaSRIYESSudanSUDYESSwaziland(Eswatini)SWZYESSyrian Arab RepublicSYRYESTanzaniaTANYESTajikistanTJKYESTurkmenistanTKMYESDemocratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUzandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESYemanYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Seychelles	SEY	YES
Sri LankaSRIYESSudanSUDYESSwaziland(Eswatini)SWZYESSyrian Arab RepublicSYRYESTanzaniaTANYESTajikistanTJKYESTurkmenistanTKMYESDemocratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUzandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESYemanYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Sierra Leone	SLE	YES
SudanSUDYESSwaziland(Eswatini)SWZYESSyrian Arab RepublicSYRYESTanzaniaTANYESTajikistanTJKYESTurkmenistanTKMYESDemocratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Somalia	SOM	YES
Swaziland(Eswatini)SWZYESSyrian Arab RepublicSYRYESTanzaniaTANYESTajikistanTJKYESTurkmenistanTKMYESDemocratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUzandaUGAYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Sri Lanka	SRI	YES
Syrian Arab RepublicSYRYESTanzaniaTANYESTajikistanTJKYESTurkmenistanTKMYESDemocratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Sudan	SUD	YES
Tanzania TAN YES Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uganda UGA YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES YEM YES	Swaziland(Eswatini)	SWZ	YES
Tajikistan TJK YES Turkmenistan TKM YES Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste TLS YES Togo TOG YES Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uganda UGA YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Yes Yemen YEM YES Zambia ZAM YES	Syrian Arab Republic	SYR	YES
TurkmenistanTKMYESDemocratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Tanzania	TAN	YES
Democratic Republic of Timor-LesteTLSYESTogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Tajikistan	TJK	YES
TogoTOGYESTunisiaTUNYESUnited Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Turkmenistan	TKM	YES
Tunisia TUN YES United Arab Emirates UAE YES Uganda UGA YES Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Yemen YEM YES Zambia ZAM YES	Democratic Republic of Timor-Leste	TLS	YES
United Arab EmiratesUAEYESUgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Togo	TOG	YES
UgandaUGAYESUzbekistanUZBYESVenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Tunisia	TUN	YES
Uzbekistan UZB YES Venezuela VEN YES Vietnam VIE YES Yemen YEM YES Zambia ZAM YES	United Arab Emirates	UAE	YES
VenezuelaVENYESVietnamVIEYESYemenYEMYESZambiaZAMYES	Uganda	UGA	YES
Vietnam VIE YES Yemen YEM YES Zambia ZAM YES	Uzbekistan	UZB	YES
Yemen YEM YES Zambia ZAM YES	Venezuela	VEN	YES
Zambia ZAM YES	Vietnam	VIE	YES
	Yemen	YEM	YES
Zimbabwe ZIM YES	Zambia	ZAM	YES
	Zimbabwe	ZIM	YES



(*) (YES/NO) According to the following Government Guidelines: D. S. No 069-2016-RE (República de Popular China) D. S. No 006-2017-RE (República de la India)

Both supreme decrees establish the exemption of the temporary visa requirement in the migratory qualities of tourist and business to enter Peru, to the nationals of the People's Republic of China and the Republic of India, holders of valid and current ordinary passports, provided that prove at least one of the following conditions:

- a) Be holders of visas with a minimum validity of six (6) months from the United States of America, Canada, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, Australia or a State belonging to the Schengen Area.
- b) Have permanent residence in the United States of America, Canada, the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, Australia or in a State belonging to the Schengen Area.

For more information:

https://cdn.www.gob.pe/uploads/document/file/337769/Requerimientos de visa para ciudadanos extranjeros.pdf

8. FINA FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION

The National Federations are responsible for their team travel, accommodation and meals expenses. FINA will provide financial contribution for a maximum of three (3) swimmers and one (1) coach entered to participate at this Championships as follows:

Africa: up to USD 1'625.- per person
Asia: up to USD 1'820.- per person
Americas: up to USD 585.- per person
Europe: up to USD 975.- per person
Oceania: up to USD 1'625.- per person

The financial contribution will be provided only after the conclusion of the Championships upon receipt by FINA of an invoice addressed to FINA by the Federation (template to provide) with copies of flight invoices, E-tickets and proofs of payment and provided that each athlete has swum at least one event and appears on the results sheet.



9. ACCOMMODATION

FÉDÉRATION INTERNATIONALE

DE NATATION

List of official hotels and the room rates (Full Board Accommodation (FBA) in USD):

HOTEL	QUALITY	FBA PER PERSON BY NIGHT (DOUBLE ROOM)		FBA PER PERSONIGHT (SINGLE		DISTANCE FROM THE AIRPORT	DISTANCE FROM THE COMPETITION VENUE
JW MARRIOTT	5 STARS	\$	250.00	\$	350.00	30 min / 20 km	20 min / 10 km
SHERATON	4 STARS	\$	170.00	\$	240.00	25 min / 10 km	15 min / 6 km
HOLYDAY INN	4 STARS	\$	170.00	\$	240.00	35 min / 18 km	20 min / 8 km
COURTYARD BY MARRIOTT	4 STARS	\$	170.00	\$	240.00	35 min / 18 km	20 min / 8 km
FAIRFIELD BY MARRIOTT	4 STARS	\$	170.00	\$	240.00	40 min / 20 km	20 min / 8 km
EXE	4 STARS	\$	170.00	\$	240.00	35 min / 18 km	20 min / 8 km

1. JW MARRIOTT

Address: Malecón de la Reserva 615, Miraflores 15074





2. SHERATON

Address: Av. Paseo de la República 170, Cercado de Lima 15001







3. HOLIDAY INN

Address: Av. Ricardo Palma 355, Miraflores 15074





4. COURTYARD BY MARRIOTT

Address: Calle Schell 400, Miraflores 15074





5. FAIRFIELD BY MARRIOTT

Address: Calle Martin Dulanto 128, Miraflores 15047





6. EXE

Address: Calle 290, Calle Alcanfores, Miraflores 04004





Please keep in mind the following guidelines:

- The OC is in direct coordination with the official hotels.
- The participating National Federations must make the payment directly to the OC.
- All taxes for foreign visitors staying less than 60 days in Peru are included in the rates.
- Check-in is at 3:00 p.m. and check-out is at 11:00 a.m.
- 50% of the daily rate will be charged for early check-in or late check-out.
- An additional daily rate will be charged for any early arrival or late departure.
- A form will be sent to each participating National Federation for the preparation of rooming list.
- The payment deadline for hotel reservations is:
 - 50% of the total amount to be paid by July 1, 2022.
 - The remaining 50% is to be paid by July 19, 2022.
- The OC may not be able to offer these rates or guarantee reservations after July 19 if payments are not received by the suggested deadline. A surcharge may apply or an alternative hotel may be booked.
- Please contact Luz Arroyo at <u>accommodation@fdpn.org</u> for any queries regarding accommodation.



10. LOCAL TRANSPORTATION

The athlete transportation bus system will provide the following services to athletes and accredited officials, including their sports equipment and luggage:

- Arrival and departure services between Jorge Chávez International Airport and the official hotels.
- Transportation services between the official accommodation and the competition and training facilities.
- Services for ceremonies.
- Transportation will be available for any athlete held for the antidoping process after the competition.

11. UPCOMING FOLLOW-UP DOCUMENTS

DOCUMENT	EXPECTED DATE OF RELEASE
COVID-19 Protocol and Guidelines	In June 2022
Team Leaders Guide	TBD